
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

For details of the Council, it’s elected representatives and meetings 
visit the Rother District Council Website www.rother.gov.uk 

 

To all Members of the Council 
 
 

23 April 2021 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend the Annual Meeting of Rother District Council to 
be held remotely on Tuesday 4 May 2021 at 6:30pm, when it is proposed to transact 
the business stated below. 
 

1.   The Chairman (Councillor Drayson) to take the Chair.   

2.   To receive apologies for absence.   

3.   The Vice-Chairman to take the chair and announce first business to be the 
election of Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year. A Councillor to 
move that Councillor Brian Drayson be re-elected as Chairman of the 
Council. To be seconded. The Vice-Chairman to ask if there are any other 
nominations. If there is more than one nomination there will be a vote by roll-
call in accordance with the Council's Remote Meetings Procedure Rules   

4.   If there is only one nomination, the Vice-Chairman to put that nomination to 
the meeting and subsequently to declare the Councillor elected.   

5.   The Chairman to read and sign at a later date the Declaration of Acceptance 
of Office.   

6.   The Chairman to thank the Council for his re-appointment to serve a second 
term of office.   

7.   The Chairman to seek nominations for the appointment of Vice-Chairman of 
the Council.  A Councillor to move that Councillor Kathy Harmer be re-
elected as Vice-Chairman of the Council.  To be seconded.  The Chairman to 
ask if there are any other nominations. If there is more than one nomination 
there will be a vote by roll-call in accordance with the Council's Remote 
Meetings Procedure Rules   

8.   If there is only one nomination, the Chairman to put that nomination to the 
meeting and subsequently to declare the Councillor appointed.   

9.   The Vice-Chairman to read and sign at a later date the Declaration of 
Acceptance of Office.   

10.   The Vice-Chairman to thank the Council for her re-appointment.   

11.   To approve as a correct record and to authorise the Chairman to sign at a 
later date the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 22 February 2021.   

12.   Chairman's Communications.   

13.   The Chairman to confirm that, in accordance with the current Executive 
Arrangements Councillor Oliver has been appointed Leader of the Council 

Public Document Pack

http://www.rother.gov.uk/


For details of the Council, it’s elected representatives and meetings 
visit the Rother District Council Website www.rother.gov.uk 

until May 2023.   

14.   The Leader of the Council to confirm that Councillor Sue Prochak has been 
appointed as the Deputy Leader of the Council   

15.   The Leader of the Council to confirm that Cabinet will comprise the Leader 
and the following 7 other Members with the following portfolios:  
  

 Councillors Portfolios 
Oliver (Leader)      Strategy/Transformation /External 

Communications/PR 
Prochak (Deputy 
Leader) 

Environment and Place/Rural Rother Lead/ 
Customer Service/Member Training Champion 
      

Bayliss                    Economic Development and Regeneration 
 

Byrne Housing and Homes 
 

Dixon Finance /Performance Management 
(Resources) 
 

Field                       Environmental Services /Climate 
Change/Transport 
 

Timpe Neighbourhood Services, Culture, Tourism, 
Leisure & Amenities 
 

Vine-Hall                 Strategy & Planning 
  

(Note: In accordance with Article 7 of the Constitution, the Cabinet will 
consist of the Leader together with at least two, but not more than ten, 
Councillors appointed by the Leader). 

 

16.   The Leader of the Council to confirm that Councillors Prochak and Field have 
been appointed as the Council's representatives on the Joint Waste and 
Recycling Committee with Councillors Bayliss and Byrne as substitutes.   

17.   The Leader of the Council to confirm that Councillors Clark, Coleman, and 
Thomas have been re-appointed as Cabinet Spokespersons / Member 
Champions for Aged Community, Young People and Child Poverty and 
Promoting Liveable Neighbourhoods (Cycling/ walking) respectively.   

18.   The Leader of the Council to confirm that Councillors Bayliss, Curtis, Dixon, 
Jeeawon, Mier and Oliver have been appointed as Members of the Property 
Investment Panel.   

19.   To consider and approve as detailed in Appendix 1:  (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 the committees to be established for the municipal year; 

 the size and terms of reference for those committees; 

 the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the 
political balance rules or as otherwise determined by the 
Council; and 

http://www.rother.gov.uk/


For details of the Council, it’s elected representatives and meetings 
visit the Rother District Council Website www.rother.gov.uk 

 the nominations of Group Leaders as to the Councillors to 
serve on each committee. 

 

20.   Disclosure of Interest   

 To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable pecuniary 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and whether the 
Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the terms of the 
Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat their 
declaration immediately prior to commencement of the item in question. 

 

21.   To receive the report of the Cabinet on matters for determination by the full 
Council at its meetings held on 29 March (there were no recommendations to 
Council arising from the meetings held on 1 March and 8 April 2021), as 
under:  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 29 March 2021 
 

 The purchase of accommodation for temporary use by homeless 
households (CB20/119) 

 Financial Stability Programme (CB20/120) 
 

22.   To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service, in accordance with 
paragraph 17a of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules and paragraph 
4 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules, of any urgent 
decisions taken at Cabinet meetings held on 1 and 29 March and 8 April 
2021.  (Pages 9 - 12) 

23.   To receive the report of the Audit and Standards Committee on the following 
matters for determination by the full Council considered at its meeting held on 
22 March 2021, as under:  (Pages 13 - 32) 
 

  Code of Conduct (AS20/44)   
 Independent Person Recruitment (AS20/45) 
 Risk Management Update (AS20/46) 
 Audit Independent Person Recruitment (AS20/47) 

 

24.   To receive the Annual Report of the Member Development Task Group.  
(Pages 33 - 36) 

25.   To receive the Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
submitted in accord with Article 6 of the Constitution - TO FOLLOW   

 
Malcolm Johnston 
Chief Executive  
 
Town Hall, Bexhill-on-Sea, 
East Sussex, TN39 3JX

http://www.rother.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



c210504 - Appointments to Committees 

Appendix 1 
ANNUAL MEETING 

4 May 2021 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT & HOUSING ACT 1989 – PROPORTIONAL 
REPRESENTATION 

 
ARRANGEMENTS – REGULATORY & OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

2021/2022 
 
a) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.3 (i) the following Regulatory 

and Overview and Scrutiny Committees of the Council be constituted for the 
ensuing year: 

 

 Audit and Standards Committee 

 Licensing and General Purposes Committee 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 Planning Committee 
 

b) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.3 (ii) the terms of reference for 
the Regulatory and Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the scheme of 
delegation, be as set out within Articles 6 and 8 and “Part 3 – Responsibility 
for Functions” of the Constitution.  
 

c) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.3 (ii) and (iii) the membership of 
Political Groups and the allocation of seats to serve on each Committee be as 
follows: 

 
 Membership 
 
 CONSERVATIVE (13) C  
 

Barnes, J Johnson 

Barnes, M L Kirby-Green 

Bird Maynard 

Browne Mooney 

Carroll Osborne 

Curtis Stevens 

Ganly  

 
ASSOCIATION OF INDEPENDENTS (13) AoI 
 

Brewerton Jeeawon 

Byrne Langlands 

Clark Madeley 

Drayson Oliver 

Earl-Williams Timpe 

Errington Vine-Hall 

Harmer  

  
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 19



c210504 - Appointments to Committees 

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT & GREEN (8) LD&G 
 

Cook Mier 

Dixon Norton 

Field Prochak 

Gray  Thomas  

 
LABOUR (3) LAB 

 

Bayliss  

Coleman 

Courtel 

  
d) The Liberal Democrat Group and the Green Party Member for Old Town and 

Worsham Ward have formed a political group for the purposes of the 
allocation of committee seats in accordance with the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989.  The Group will be known as the Liberal Democrat & 
Green Group.  In accordance with usual practice for the purposes of 
committee seat allocation the vacant seat (Eastern Rother) has been 
allocated to the Group who last held the seat (Conservative).   The allocation 
of Committee Seats is therefore as follows, in accordance with the political 
balance of the Council:      

 
Allocation of Seats 
 
 
 
   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

e) The Labour Group are unable to take up their seat on the Planning Committee 
and have given the seat to the Liberal Democrat and Green Group.  The 
Liberal Democrat and Green Group have given up one of their seats on the 
Audit and Standards Committee to the Labour Group.  The seat allocation and 
the actual entitlement is shown in brackets in the table above.  The overall 
seat allocation to the political groups remains the same and is in accordance 
with political balance requirements. 
 
Substitutes 
 

f) In accordance with the Council’s Substitute Procedure, one named Substitute 
is also permitted from each Political Group on the Planning Committee, the 
Licensing and General Purposes Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  Substitutes appointed to the Planning and Licensing and General 
Purposes Committees must have undertaken the pre-requisite mandatory 
training to take an active part in the meetings, when acting as Substitute.  It is 
noted that as the Labour Group have not appointed a substantive Planning 
Committee Member, there is no Labour Group Substitute on the Planning 
Committee.   

Committees C Aol LD&G LAB 
 

Audit and Standards (8) 3 3 1(2)  1 (0) 

Planning (14) 5 5 3 0 (1) 

Licensing & General 
Purposes (12) 

4 4 3 1 

OSC (12)  5 4 2 1 

TOTALS 17 16 10 3 

Page 2



c210504 - Appointments to Committees 

Audit and Standards Committee – 8 Members 
(3xC, 3xAoI, 2*xLD&G) 
 

C AoI LD&G LAB 

Barnes, J. Harmer Thomas Courtel 

Mrs Barnes, M.L. Jeeawon   

Kirby-Green Madeley   
 

 *one LD&G seat given to Labour Group. 
 

Licensing & General Purposes Committee – 12 Members  
(4xC, 4xAoI, 3xLD&G, 1xLAB)  
 

C AoI LD&G LAB 

Bird Byrne Field Coleman 

Browne Harmer Mier  

Curtis Madeley Thomas  

Vacancy Timpe   

Substitute: Substitute: Substitute: Substitute: 

Kirby-Green  Earl-Williams Gray Bayliss 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 12 Members  
(5xC, 4xAoI, 2xLD&G, 1xLAB)  

  

C AoI LD LAB 

Barnes, J. Clark Cook Coleman 

Carroll Earl-Williams Gray  

Maynard Errington   

Mooney Madeley   

Osborne    

Substitute: Substitute: Substitute: Substitute: 

Stevens Langlands Thomas Courtel 
 

Planning Committee – 14 Members  
(5xC, 5xAoI, 3xLD&G, 1*xLAB) 
 

C AoI LD&G 

Mrs Barnes, M.L. Errington Gray 

Curtis Harmer Mier 

Ganly Langlands  Prochak 

Johnson Madeley Norton 

Stevens Vine-Hall  

Substitute: Substitute: Substitute: 

Barnes, J. Timpe Thomas  

 *one LAB seat given to LD&G Group. 
 

g) The Chief Executive be granted delegated authority to undertake a review of 
the allocation of committee seats following the Eastern Rother Ward by-
election and to agree any necessary adjustments and appointments of 
Members to committee seats in accordance with the relevant Group Leaders’ 
wishes. 

 
Malcolm Johnston 
Chief Executive  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



c210504 – Cabinet References 

Rother District Council              
 
Report to  - Council 

Date  -  4 May 2021 

Report of the  - Cabinet  

Subject  - References from Cabinet Meetings 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider recommendations arising from the Cabinet meeting 
held on 29 March 2021, as set out below and to note that there were no 
recommendations to Council arising from the Cabinet meetings held on 1 March or 8 
April 2021.  
 

  
CABINET – 29 March 2021 
 
CB20/119. THE PURCHASE OF ACCOMMODATION FOR TEMPORARY USE 
 BY HOMELESS HOUSEHOLDS 

 
In September 2019, Cabinet approved the allocation of £3m to 
purchase accommodation for temporary use by homeless households.  
To date, the Council had 81 households in temporary accommodation 
(TA) which was funded from the Revenue Budget, as well as nine 
households funded by the Rough Sleeping Initiative (RSI).  Grant 
funding had been received to contribute towards additional costs 
however, it was anticipated that the amount received would not meet 
the Council’s costs.  A deficit of £25,500 was expected by the end of 
2020/21 and there was no indication that additional funding would be 
forthcoming.  The budget for 2020/21 was £1.1m offset by £508,000 
from housing benefit leaving a net cost of £592,000. 
 
Cabinet was apprised of the properties owned by the Council and 
offers accepted on properties across the District to accommodate 
homeless people and families.  The Council would also continue to use 
approximately 30 privately owned and well-managed TA 
establishments.  Appendix A to the report illustrated the number and 
types of households the Council had placed in TA between April 2020 
and February 2021.  As a result of COVID-19, the Council was unable 
to predict the future demand for TA and it was possible that the levels 
of homelessness might reduce in the short to medium term.  Members 
noted that the Council was not duty bound to provide single people with 
self-contained accommodation; the Council would commission proper 
management and support services to assist with this cohort. 
 
Appendix B to the report illustrated the average net cost of TA through 
private providers, per size of household.  The average stay was 51 
days for single people/childless couples at a cost of £1,700 (£12,000 
annually) and 66 days for families at a cost of £2,500 (£14,000 
annually). 
 
A financial assessment of income and costs associated with the 
Council purchasing TA had been completed.  Projections had been 

Page 5

Agenda Item 21



c210504 – Cabinet References 

verified in consultation with neighbouring local authorities delivering 
similar schemes.  It was estimated that £5.7m would be required to 
purchase 35 different properties (combination of houses and flats) with 
an overall net cost avoidance of just under £160,000 per annum. 
 
The TA Investment Strategy and Risk Register at Appendices C and D 
respectively to the report outlined the types of properties the Council 
intended to purchase and associated risks.  In-house and external 
specialist expertise would be required to oversee property 
management, repair and refurbishment functions.  External 
consultancy would be monitored in consultation with the Cabinet 
Portfolio Holders for Housing and Finance and Performance 
Management.  Currently, the Council did not have the resources, 
expertise or tools to manage all aspects of properties directly; this 
would be kept under review as the portfolio of properties grew.  A 
service specification was being established to commission a property 
management service to manage existing and future purchases. 
 
During the discussion, it was clarified that improved energy efficiency 
measures were a primary focus for the Council when purchasing and 
retrofitting properties for TA.  Environmental innovation funding 
initiatives / grants were actively being sourced to assist with the 
installation of energy efficiency measures in all Council properties. 
 
Cabinet was supportive of the recommendations proposed and agreed 
that purchasing property would provide the Council with more control 
over the quality of TA and ensure greater control of revenue costs.  It 
would also allow the Council to develop the skills and expertise 
required to grow a larger portfolio of properties for the future. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the: 
 
1) amended Temporary Accommodation Purchase Strategy be 

approved; 
 

2) Head of Housing and Community be given authority to purchase 
property for the use as temporary accommodation for homeless 
households up to a total value of up to £6 million to be funded from 
borrowing, in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for Housing and 
Finance and Performance Management; and 
 

3) Capital Programme be amended accordingly. 
 
(Cabinet Agenda Item 6) 

 
 
CB20/120. FINANCIAL STABILITY PROGRAMME 
  

Achieving financial stability for the Council was one of the key 
objectives within the draft Corporate Plan which was currently out for 
consultation.  To support the objective of financial stability and ensure 
organisational focus was maintained, it was proposed that a Financial 
Stability Programme (FSP) be established to manage the programme 

Page 6



c210504 – Cabinet References 

of work, in turn this would be overseen by a Board of key Members and 
officers. 
 
The report provided an overview of the key areas required to deliver 
savings and income over the next five years and how progress would 
be managed.  In preparation for the creation of the FSP, Heads of 
Service met with relevant Cabinet Members to review budgets and 
discuss services.  Four themes had been identified to achieve reduced 
revenue spend and increased income: 

 

 Devolvement: To devolve discretionary services to the Parish and 
Town Councils.  It would be essential to create a dedicated team to 
undertake this work which was anticipated could take a minimum of 
two years to complete. 

 Invest to Save: To invest in digitalisation (including artificial 
intelligence technology) and business processes of which some key 
projects were underway or ongoing. 

 Service Prioritisation: It was proposed that a combined target for 
Invest to Save and Service Prioritisation be set for each service 
area.  This was allocated on an arbitrary 10% discretionary spend.  
Set targets would drive the Council to identify projects and income 
generating ideas in order to minimise the amount of service 
reductions required. 

 Income Generation: A number of income streams had been 
identified and required investigation.  It was proposed that a small 
team be established to support service areas with this work. 

 
The Assistant Director Resources advised that it would be sensible to 
establish an Invest to Save fund to meet any one-off costs required to 
secure an ongoing revenue saving/income.  It was proposed that 
delegated authority for spend approval of up to £750,000 be granted to 
the Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Performance Management.  Members would be kept 
abreast of approved expenditure. 
 
Appendix A to the report identified the proposed timetable for the first 
year of the FSP and key activities.  It was proposed that between April 
2021 and August 2021, each service area supported by the finance 
team conducted its own initial review based on work streams identified 
in Appendix B to the report and produced a proposal report for the 
Financial Stability Board (FSB) to consider.  Quarterly progress reports 
would be reported to the FSB and Cabinet.  As a result of income 
generation opportunities and the redirection of staff into priority areas, 
Cabinet was reassured that compulsory redundancies were not 
envisaged. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That up to £750,000 be earmarked from releasing 
existing reserves for Invest to Save projects and that the Chief 
Executive be given delegated authority to authorise expenditure 
against this reserve in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Performance Management. 
 
Cabinet also RESOLVED: That: 
 

Page 7



c210504 – Cabinet References 

1) a Financial Stability Programme be established, supported by a 
Financial Stability Board of key Members and officers; 
 

2) the approach and process to achieving financial stability as set out 
in this report be approved; and 
 

3) two dedicated officer teams to deliver the work themes for 
devolvement and income generation be established. 

  

(Cabinet Agenda Item 7) 
 

 
 
Councillor D.B. Oliver 
Leader of the Council 
  
 

Page 8



c210504 – Cabinet Urgent Decisions  

Rother District Council               
 
Report to - Council 

Date  - 4 May 2021 

Report of the - Chief Executive  

Subject - Decisions taken as a matter of urgency at Cabinet 
Meetings 

 

 
The Council is asked to receive the report of Cabinet, in accordance with paragraph 
4 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules and 17(a) of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, on a decision taken as a matter of urgency at its 
meeting held on 8 April 2021.  (Council to note that there were no urgent decisions 
taken at the Cabinet meetings held on 1 and 29 March 2021).  
 

 
CABINET – 8 April 2021 
 
CB20/126. ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS GRANT - DISCRETIONARY  
  BUSINESS RESTART GRANT SCHEME 
 

Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director 
Resources that set out details of the Government’s national restart 
scheme to assist businesses with the costs of restarting trading 
following the national lockdown. The scheme was available to 
businesses with a national non domestic rating  and grants of up to 
£18,000 would be allocated to hospitality, accommodation, leisure, 
personal care and gym business premises, as detailed at Appendix A 
to the report.  The national scheme was already live and the Council 
was processing applications received from businesses for the grant 
funding. 
   
Alongside this, a further discretionary start up grant scheme was also 
available for those businesses without a rating liability, subject to 
national and locally set criteria and Members were invited to consider 
the proposals set out within the report for the new discretionary grant 
scheme.  It was noted that charities were not specifically mentioned; 
however charity shops would be covered by the national scheme, in 
any event.      
 

Officers had reviewed the previous business sectors supported by the 
Council as set out at Appendix B to the report and had recommended 
which of these should be carried through to the new scheme.  An 
assessment had also been undertaken as to the appropriate level of 
grant that could be offered as follows: 
 

Category Grant  

Shared Accommodation  £2,667 

Retail, hospitality and Leisure supply chain # £2,667 

Bed & Breakfast  £8,000 

Market Traders  £500 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 22



c210504 – Cabinet Urgent Decisions  

Category Grant  

Holiday accommodation including self-contained 
holiday lets and small campsites  

£8,000 

Events  £8,000 

Home Based ‘in person’ businesses – hair and beauty £500 
 

The current Additional Restrictions Grant discretionary grant scheme 
had a total fund of £2.7m and as of 29 March 2021, £1.5m had been 
paid out.  Based on the number of businesses previously applying for 
support, using the suggested amounts under the new scheme, an 
estimated £860,000 could be paid out in discretionary restart grants, 
leaving approximately £300,000.  Further funds of £425m were 
announced for the discretionary restart grants by Government, but 
accessing this was dependent on spending the original allocation of 
funding (£2.7m).  Whilst the Council had delivered grants efficiently and 
effectively, it was unlikely that the balance of the original funding would 
be spent by the 30 June deadline to receive this extra funding.   
 
The flexibility of this funding did afford the Council to be creative with 
how it could support businesses restart the local and national economy 
and the following were proposed: 

 
a. Late applications for national lockdown 3 grants – eligible 

businesses that failed to apply for the latest grant support (the same 
criteria and grant amounts to apply as for the national scheme).  

 
b. Promotion of the Rother area – marketing and promotion of the 

Rother area to attract new businesses to set up or relocate and to 
promote visitors to the district through the 1066 country brand and 
as recently approved by Cabinet, Sussex Modern.  

 
c. Business Start-up/expansion/relocation support – to establish a 

fund of £200,000 (to be expended by March 2022) to help 
businesses start, expand (with increased employment) or relocate 
to the Rother area.   

 
It was reported that proposals b and c had been referred to the 
department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy for guidance, 
which was still awaited.   
 
Members were keen to ensure that businesses that met the criteria 
were made aware of the grant funding and encouraged to apply; all 
Members and parish and town clerks were urged to help promote the 
scheme to relevant businesses in their locations.  Members paid tribute 
to the small officer team that had supported the local businesses 
through the various grant schemes to date for speedy and efficient 
processing and one to one support.       

   
It was agreed to delegate authority to the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio Holders for Finance and 
Performance Management and Economic Development and 
Regeneration to finalise the amounts of grants and detailed criteria.  
Whilst every effort would be made to ensure that as many businesses 
as possible would be eligible for funding by reviewing the criteria, this 

Page 10



c210504 – Cabinet Urgent Decisions  

needed to be carefully balanced so as not to result in unintended 
consequences such as businesses that had been able to trade being 
eligible to apply.      

    
RESOLVED: That: 

 
1) the Additional Restrictions Grant - Discretionary Business Restart 

Grant Scheme outlined in the report be approved;  
 
2) the other proposals for utilising the Government funding (a) late 

applications for national lockdown 3 grants, b) promotion of the 
Rother area and c) business start-up / expansion / relocation 
support) be approved, subject to guidance from the department 
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy; and  

 

3) the Chief Executive be granted delegated authority in consultation 
with the Cabinet Portfolio Holders for Finance and Performance 
Management and Economic Development and Regeneration to 
finalise the amounts of grants and detailed criteria.  

 

The Chairman of Council had agreed that this decision could be 
taken as a matter of urgency to allow the Council to implement the 
scheme as soon as possible.    

 
(Councillor Prochak declared a personal interest in this matter as a 
Chair of a charity that had received a grant in the past and in 
accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct remained in the room 
during the consideration thereof).   
 
(Cabinet Agenda Item 5) 

 
 
Malcolm Johnston 
Chief Executive 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Rother District Council              
 
Report to  - Council 

Date  -  4 May 2021 

Report of the  - Audit and Standards Committee  

Subject  - References from the Audit and Standards Committee 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider the recommendations arising from the Audit and 
Standards Committee meeting held on 22 March, as set out below.  
 

 
AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 22 March 2021 
 
STANDARDS REPORTS 
 
AS20/44. CODE OF CONDUCT 
  

Since the last meeting, the Local Government Association’s (LGA) new 
model Code of Conduct (CoC) had been released, following a 
consultation exercise to which this Council had responded.  However, it 
was recommended at this stage to retain the Council’s existing CoC to 
maintain consistency across the Districts and Boroughs and this was a 
view shared by the majority of Monitoring Officers across East Sussex.  
 
Whilst the model CoC was clearer and more user-friendly this alone 
was not considered enough to justify a recommendation for change by 
neighbouring East Sussex authorities who felt that it was best at this 
stage to wait for a model CoC that contained changes of real 
substance.  It was also considered prudent to wait until the 
Government had responded to the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life’s (CSPL) review into ethical standards and recommendations 
which might result in further legislative change and meaningful 
sanctions.  
 
A common CoC was welcome for the dual-hatted Members and this 
was particularly pertinent in light of the East Sussex County Council 
(ESCC) elections taking place in May this year and the likelihood of a 
number of dual-hatted Members being elected. 
 
Should Members agree to retain the Council’s existing CoC, a number 
of minor differences had been identified and it was recommended to 
update the Council’s CoC to bring it into line with that of ESCC, which 
were highlighted within the report.  The Council’s position with regard 
to the CoC would be reviewed when the Government’s response to the 
CSPL’s recommendations were known. 
 
The Committee was fully supportive of the recommendations proposed 
and agreed that an aligned CoC with ESCC and other local authorities 
would be extremely helpful, particularly for dual-hatted Members. 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 23



c210504 – A&S Reference 

RECOMMENDED: That:  
 
1) in order to maintain consistency across the East Sussex authorities 

the Council’s existing Code of Conduct be retained at the current 
time and amended to bring it in line with East Sussex County 
Council’s version as set out at Appendix A; and 
 

2) this Council’s position and Code of Conduct be reviewed when the 
Government’s response to the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life’s recommendations is known. 

 
(Audit and Standards Agenda Item 5) 

 
 
AS20/45. INDEPENDENT PERSON RECRUITMENT 
 
 At the last meeting, the Committee was advised of the need to appoint 

an Independent Person (IP) following the expiry of the Term of Office of 
two of the Council’s three IPs in July 2021.  The process to be 
undertaken was agreed and the Committee recommended that one 
appointment be made. 
 
The Committee agreed that the Chairman of the Committee, the Chief 
Executive together with the Monitoring Officer comprised a panel to 
interview the suitable applicants and make a recommendation to the 
Audit and Standards Committee and then on to full Council on 17 May 
2021. 
 
At the closing date (29 January 2021), nine applications had been 
received and four candidates were shortlisted for interview, held on 18 
February 2021.  The expectations of the role in terms of regular 
attendance at meetings and contributions to committee discussions on 
standards matters were explained to each applicant at interview. 
 
The standard of the applicants was very good and the Panel was 
confident to recommend that Mr Robert Brown be appointed to serve 
as one of the Council’s IPs and for his name to be put forward for 
approval by full Council on Monday 17 May 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Robert Brown be appointed as an 
Independent Person in accordance with Chapter 7, Section 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011, for a term of four years commencing from 10 July 
2021. 
 
(Audit and Standards Agenda Item 6) 

 

 
AUDIT REPORTS 
 
AS20/46. RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

Members considered the update report that covered major issues in 
risk management during 2020/21.  Risk referred to the uncertainty that 
surrounded future events and outcomes and it was essential that the 

Page 14



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Council had a strong approach to risk management, particularly with 
the current environment, a global pandemic and ongoing substantial 
financial pressures. 
 
2020/21 was dominated with the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 
terms of the Council’s operations and finances supporting the 
community and business.  At the September meeting, several risks 
were identified, two of which required further work, namely sustainably 
meeting a long-term crisis e.g. expand the Council’s business 
continuity plans and supply chains and contractor resilience e.g. to 
provide on-going long-term financial support.  Despite the national 
lockdowns, the Council was able to maintain services however this 
might not be achievable once restrictions were lifted.  It was not known 
whether further Government funding would be forthcoming to support 
the Council. 
 
The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) had been updated to reflect the 
most recent review by the Corporate Management Team (CMT).  At 
present the CRR indicated the likelihood of a further pandemic 
remaining at its highest level.  With the advances in medical science 
and the measures undertaken by the Council to ensure full home 
working, it was felt that the impact on service delivery going forward 
had been mitigated to a significant extent.  Further risks added to the 
CRR were failure to comply with legislation and delivery of the 
Corporate Plan. 
 
The Council maintained a Risk Management Policy (RMP) as detailed 
at Appendix B to the report which set out the responsibilities of 
Members, CMT and Heads of Service.  This was backed up by the 
Risk Management Framework which was underpinned by service and 
project based risk registers.  The RMP had been updated to reflect the 
current officer structure of the Council.  It was suggested that between 
June 2021 and September 2022, the Audit and Standards Committee 
reviewed each service risk register, as ongoing financial pressures on 
the Council increased risks which would have to be actively managed 
by both officers and Members. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the amended Risk Management Policy at 
Appendix B to the report be adopted. 
 
The Audit and Standards Committee also RESOLVED: That the: 
 
1) Council’s Corporate Risk Register at Appendix A to the report be 

noted; and 
 

2) Heads of Service be invited to future meetings to review their 
service risk registers as follows: 

 

 June 2021 – Environmental Services, Licensing and Community 
Safety 

 September 2021 – Acquisitions, Transformation and 
Regeneration 

 December 2021 – Neighbourhood Services 

 March 2022 – Resources and Corporate Core 

Page 15



c210504 – A&S Reference 

 September 2022 – Strategy and Planning 
 
(Audit and Standards Agenda Item 14) 

 
 
AS20/47. AUDIT INDEPENDENT PERSON RECRUITMENT 
 

In June 2020, at the recommendation of the Committee, it was agreed 
that an Audit Independent Person (AIP) be appointed to the Audit and 
Standards Committee (A&SC).  The AIP would be a non-elected 
member of the public with some experience in audit, a non-voting 
member of the Committee and present in an advisory / consultative 
manner only. 
 
Members agreed that the Chairman of the A&SC, the Assistant 
Director Resources together with the Audit Manager comprised a panel 
to interview the suitable applicants and make a recommendation to the 
A&SC and then on to full Council on 17 May 2021. 
 
At the closing date (29 January 2021), three applications had been 
received and two candidates were interviewed on 18 February 2021, 
via MS Teams.  The expectations of the role in terms of regular 
attendance at meetings and contributions to committee discussions 
were explained to each applicant at interview. 
 
The calibre of the applicants was high and the Panel was confident to 
recommend that Mr Patrick Farmer be appointed to serve for an initial 
period of two years with the option of extending this for a further two 
years as the Council’s AIP and for his name to be put forward for 
approval by full Council on Monday 17 May 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Patrick Farmer be appointed as the Council’s 
Audit Independent Person, for an initial term of two years (extendable 
for a further two years) with effect from 18 May 2021. 

 
(Audit and Standards Agenda Item 15) 

 
 
Councillor A.K. Jeeawon 
Chairman of the Audit and Standards Committee 
  

Page 16



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Appendix A 
Rother District Council 
 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
FOR MEMBERS 
 

 
The Code of Conduct, adopted by Rother District Council on 4 May 20218 July 2019 
is set out below. It is made under Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.  It includes, as 
standing orders made under Chapter 7 of that Act and Schedule 12 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, provisions which require Members to leave meetings in 
appropriate circumstances, while matters in which they have a personal and 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest are being considered. 
 

PART 1 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
Introduction and Interpretation 
 
1. (1)  The Code applies to you as a Member of the authority, when acting in 

  that capacity. 
 

(2)  This Code is based upon seven principles fundamental to public 
service which are set out in Appendix 1. You should have regard to 
these principles they will help you to comply with the Code. 

 
(3)  If you need guidance on any matter under this Code you should seek it 

from the authority’s Monitoring Officer or your own legal advisor – but it 
is entirely your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 

 
(4)  It is a criminal offence to fail to notify the authority’s Monitoring Officer 

of a disclosable pecuniary interest, to take part in discussions or votes 
at meetings, or to take a decision where you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, without reasonable excuse. It is also an offence to 
knowingly or recklessly provide false or misleading information to the 
authority’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
(5)  Any written allegation received by the authority that you have failed to 

comply with this Code will be dealt with by the authority under the 
arrangements which it has adopted for such purposes. If it is found that 
you have failed to comply with the Code, the authority has the right to 
have regard to this failure in deciding; 

 
(a) whether to take action in relation to you; and 
(b) what action to take. 

 
(6)  Councillors should not seek to misuse the standards process, for 

example, by making trivial or malicious allegations against another 
councillor for the purposes of political gain. 

 

Page 17



c210504 – A&S Reference 

 (7)  In this Code – 
 

“authority” means Rother District Council 
 
“Code” means this Code of Conduct 
  
“co-opted member” means a person who is not a member of the 
authority but who – 
 
(a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, 
 or 
(b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint 
 committee or joint sub-committee of the authority. 

 
and who is entitled to vote on any questions to be decided at any 
meetings of that committee or sub-committee. 
 
“meeting” means any meeting of 
 
(a) the authority; 
(b) the executive of the authority; 
(c) any of the authority’s or its executive’s committees, sub-

committees, joint committees, joint sub-committees, or area 
committees; 

 
“member” includes a co-opted member. 
 
“register of members’ interest” means the authorities’ register of 
members’ pecuniary and other interests established and maintained 
by the authority’s Monitoring Officer under section 29 of the Localism 
Act 2011. 

Scope 
 
2.  (1)  Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) and (3), you must comply with the Code 

 whenever you – 
 

(a)  conduct the business of your authority (which, in this Code, 
includes the business of the office to which you are elected or 
appointed); or 

 
(b)  act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a 

representative of your authority. 
 
and references to your official capacity are construed accordingly. 

 
(2)  this Code does not have effect in relation to your conduct other than 

where it is in your official capacity. 
 
(3)  Where you act as a representative of your authority – 
 

(a)  on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that 
other authority, comply with that other authority’s code of 
conduct; or 

Page 18



c210504 – A&S Reference 

(b)  on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, 
comply with your authority’s code of conduct, except and insofar 
as it conflicts with any other lawful obligations to which that other 
body may be subject. 

 
General Obligations 
 
3. (1)  You must treat others with respect. 
 

(2)  You must not – 
 

(a)  do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of its 
equality duties (in particular set out in the Equality Act 2010); 

 
(b)  bully or harass any person; bullying may be characterised as: 

offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an 
abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, 
humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Harassment may be 
characterised as unwanted conduct which has the purpose or 
effect of violating an individual’s dignity or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive 
environment for an individual; 

 
(c)  intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely 

to be – 
 

(i)  a complainant; 
 
(ii)  a witness, or 
 
(iii)  involved in the administration of any investigation or 
 proceedings, in relation to an allegation that a Member 
 (including yourself) has failed to comply with his or her 
 authority’s code of conduct; or 

 
(d)  do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 

impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority. 
 

4.  You must not – 
 

(a)  disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to 
be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where – 

 
(i)  you have the consent of the person authorised to give it; 
 
(ii)  you are required by law to do so; 
 
(iii)  the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional advice provided that the third party 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 
 

(iv)  the disclosure is – 

Page 19



c210504 – A&S Reference 

(a) reasonable and in the public interest; and 
(b) made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the authority; or 
 

(b) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which 
that person is entitled by law. 

 
5.  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 

regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute. 
 
6.  You – 
 

(1)  must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly 
to confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage 
or disadvantage; 

 
(2)  must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of 

your authority – 
 
 (a)  act in accordance with your authority’s reasonable requirements; 
 

(b)  ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political 
purposes (including party political purposes); 

 
(3)  must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity 

made under the Local Government Act 1986; and  
 
(4) must comply with any request regarding the provision of information in 

relation to a complaint alleging a breach of the Code of Conduct and 
must comply with any formal standards investigation. 

 
7.  (1)  When reaching decisions on any matters you must have regard to any 

 relevant advice provided to you by – 
 

(a) your authority’s Chief Finance Officer; or 
(b) your authority’s Monitoring Officer, 

 
  where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties. 
 

(2)  You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any 
statutory requirements and any reasonable additional requirements 
imposed by your authority. 

 

  

Page 20



c210504 – A&S Reference 

PART 2 

 
INTERESTS 

Personal Interests  
 
8.  (1)  The interests described in paragraphs 8(3) are your personal 

 interests and the interests in paragraph 8(5) are your pecuniary 
 interests which are disclosable pecuniary interests as defined by 
 section 30 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
 (2)  If you fail to observe Parts 2 and 3 of the Code in relation to your  
  personal interests- 
 

(a)  the authority may deal with the matter as mentioned in 
paragraph 1(5).  

 
(b)  if the failure is related to a disclosable pecuniary interest, you 

may also become subject to criminal proceedings as mentioned 
in paragraph 1(4). 

 
(3)  You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where 

either – 
 

(a) it relates to or is likely to affect – 
(i)  any body of which you are a member or in the position of 
 general control or management and to which you are 
 appointed or nominated by the authority; 
 
(ii)  any body – 

 
(a) exercising functions of a public nature; 
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or 
(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the 

influence of public opinion or policy (including any 
political party or trade union), 

 
of which you are a member or are in a position of general 
control or management; 

 
(iii)  any employment or business carried on by you; 
 
(iv)  any person or body who employs or has appointed you; 
 
(v)  any person or body, other than a relevant authority who 

 has made a payment to you in respect of your election or 
 any expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties; 

 
(vi)  any person or body who has a place of business or land 

 in your authority’s area, and in whom you have a 
 beneficial interest in a class of securities of that person or 
 body that exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one 
 hundredth of the total issued share capital (whichever is 
 the lower); 

 

Page 21



c210504 – A&S Reference 

(vii)  any contract for goods, services or works made between 
 your authority and you or a firm in which you are a 
 partner, a company of which you are a remunerated 
 director, or a person or body of a description specified in 
 paragraph (vi); 

 
(iii)  the interest of any person from whom you have received 
 a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least 
 £50; 
(ix)  any land in your authority’s area in which you have a 

beneficial interest; 
 
(x)  any land where the landlord is your authority and you 

are, or a firm in which you are a partner, a company of 
which you are a remunerated director, or a person or 
body of the description specified in paragraph (vi) is, the 
tenant; 

 
(b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 

regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or the 
well-being or financial position of a relevant person to a greater 
extent than the majority of (in the case of authorities with 
electoral divisions or wards) other council tax payers, ratepayers 
or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, as the case may 
be, affected by the decision;   
 

(4)  In sub-paragraph 8(3)(b), a relevant person is – 
 

(a)  a member of your family or a [close] friend; or 
 
(b)  any person or body who employs or has appointed such 

persons, any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of 
which they are directors; 

 
(c)  any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial 

interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of 
£25,000; or 

 
(d)  any body of a type described in sub-paragraph (3)(a)(i) or (ii). 

 
(5)   Subject to sub-paragraphs (6) and (7), you have a personal interest 

which is also a disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by section 30 
of the Localism Act 2011 in any business of your authority which 
concerns any of the following for (i) you or (ii) your partner-  

 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation  
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain.  

Sponsorship  Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the relevant authority) 
made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you in 
carrying out duties as a member, or towards 

Page 22



c210504 – A&S Reference 

your election expenses.  
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992(1).  

Contracts  Any contract which is made between you (or a 
body in which you have a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be 
provided or works are to be executed; and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged.  

Land  Any beneficial interest in land which is within 
the area of the relevant authority.  

Licences  Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer.  

Corporate 
tenancies  

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and  
(b) the tenant is a body in which you have a 
beneficial interest.  

Securities  Any beneficial interest in securities of a body 
where—  
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place 
of business or land in the area of the relevant 
authority; and  
(b) either—  
(i) the total nominal value of the securities 

exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more 
than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which the I 
have a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital 
of the class.  

 
These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions; 
 
‘body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest’ means a 
firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of 
which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which 
the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 
 
‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an 
industrial and provident society; 
 
‘land’ includes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or 
jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 
‘M’ means the person M referred to in section 30 of the Localism Act 
2011; 
 
‘member’ includes a co-opted member; 

Page 23



c210504 – A&S Reference 

 
‘relevant authority’ means the authority of which M is a member; 
 
‘relevant period’ means the period of 12 months ending with the day 
on which M gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011; 
 
‘relevant person’ means M or any other person referred to in section 
30(3)(b) of the Localism Act 2011; 
 
‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, 
bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of 
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of 
any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 

 
(6)  In sub-paragraph (5), your partner means – 

 
(a)  your spouse or civil partner, 
(b)  a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
 
(c)  a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners, 

 
(7)  In sub-paragraph (5), any interest which your partner may have is only 

treated as your interest if you are aware that your partner has the 
interest. 

 
Disclosure of Personal Interests (See also Part 3) 
 
9. (1)  Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (6), where you have a personal 

 interest in any business of your authority and you attend a meeting of 
 your authority at which any matter relating to the business is 
 considered, you must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature 
 of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
 interest becomes apparent. 

 
(2)  If the personal interest is entered on the authority’s register there is no 

requirement for you to disclose the interest to that meeting, but you 
should do so if you wish a disclosure to be recorded in the minutes of 
the meeting. 

 
(3)  Sub-paragraph (1) only applies where you are aware or ought 

reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest. 
(4)  Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 14, 

sensitive information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s 
register of members’ interests, you must indicate to the meeting that 
you have a personal interest and, if also applicable, that it is a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, but need not disclose the sensitive 
information to the meeting. 

 
(5)  Subject to paragraph 12(1)(b), where you have a personal interest in 

any business of your authority and you have made an executive 
decision on any matter in relation to that business, you must ensure 
that any written statement of that decision records the existence and 
nature of that interest. 

Page 24



c210504 – A&S Reference 

 
(6)  In this paragraph, “executive decision” is to be construed in accordance 

with any regulations made by the Secretary of State under section 22 
of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
Prejudicial Interest Generally 
 
10.  (1)  Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a personal interest in 

 any business  of your authority you also have a prejudicial interest in 
 that business where either – 

 
(a)  the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest as described in 

  paragraph 8(5), or 
 
(b)  the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge 

of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant 
that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
(2)  For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1)(b), you do not have a prejudicial 

interest in any business of the authority where that business –  
 

(a)  does not affect your financial position or the financial position of 
a person or body described in paragraph 8; 

 
(b)  does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, 

licence, permission or registration in relation to you or any 
person or body described in paragraph 8; or 

 
(c)  relates to the functions of your authority in respect of – 

 
(i) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority 

provided that those functions do not relate particularly to 
your tenancy or lease; 

  
(ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, 

where you are a parent or guardian of a child in full time 
education, or are a parent governor of a school, unless it 
relates particularly to the school which the child attends; 

 
(iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security 

Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in 
receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay; 

 
(iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members; 
 
(v) any ceremonial honour given to members; and 
 
(vi) setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992. 
 
  

Page 25



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

11.  You also have a personal interest in any business before an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee of your authority (or of a sub-committee of such a 
committee) where – 

 
(a)  that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 

or action taken by your authority’s executive or another of your 
authority’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees; and 

 
(b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a 

Member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee 
or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were 
present when that decision was made or action was taken. 

 
Effect of Prejudicial and Pecuniary Interests on Participation 

 
12.  (1)  Subject to sub-paragraph (2) and (3), where you have a prejudicial and 
  disclosable pecuniary in any matter in relation to the business of your 
  authority – 

 
(a)  you must not participate, or participate further, in any discussion 

of the matter at any meeting, or participate in any vote, or further 
vote, taken on the matter at the meeting and must withdraw from 
the room or chamber where the meeting considering the matter is 
being held – 

 
(i) in a case where sub-paragraph (2) applies, immediately after 

making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence; 

 
(ii) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the 

matter is being considered at that meeting; 
  
 unless you have obtained a dispensation from your authority’s 

Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee; 
 
(b)  you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that 

matter; and 
 
(c)  you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that 

matter. 
 

(2)  Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your authority 
which is not a disclosable pecuniary interest as described in paragraph 
8(5), you may attend a meeting (including a meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee of your authority or of a sub-committee of such 
a committee) but only for the purpose of making representations, 
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, 
provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 

 

Page 26



c210504 – A&S Reference 

(3)  Where you can have a prejudicial interest which is not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest as described in paragraph 8(5), arising solely from 
membership of any body described in 8(3)(a)(i) or 8(3)(a)(ii)(a) then 
you do not have to withdraw from the room or chamber and may make 
representations to the committee but may not participate in the vote. 

  

Page 27



c210504 – A&S Reference 

PART 3 

 
REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Registration of Members’ Interests 

 
13. (1)  Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of- 

 
(a) this Code being adopted by the authority; or 
 
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later), register 

in the Register of Members’ Interests details of – 
 

(i) your personal interests where they fall within a category 
mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(a) and 
 
(ii) your personal interests which are also disclosable pecuniary 
interests where they fall within a category mentioned in paragraph 
8(5) 

 
  by providing written notification to your authority’s Monitoring Officer. 
 

(2)  Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware 
of any new personal interest falling within sub-paragraphs (1)(i) or 
(1)(ii) or any change to any personal interest registered under sub-
paragraphs (1)(i) or (1)(ii), register details of that new personal interest 
or change by providing written notification to your authority’s Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
Sensitive Information 

 
14. (1)  Where you consider that the information relating to any of your 

personal interests is sensitive information, and your authority’s 
Monitoring Officer agrees, the Monitoring Officer shall not include 
details of the interest on any copies of the Register of Members’ 
Interests which are made available for inspection or any published 
version of the register, but may include a statement that you have an 
interest, the details of which are withheld under this paragraph. 

 
(2)  You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of 

circumstances which means that information excluded under 
paragraph (1) is no longer sensitive information, notify your authority’s 
Monitoring Officer asking that the information be included in the 
Register of Members’ Interests. 

 
(3)  In this Code, “sensitive information” means information, the details of 

which, if disclosed, could lead to you or a person connected with you 
being subject to violence or intimidation.   

  
Dispensations 

 
15.  (1)  The Monitoring Officer may, on a written request made to the 

 Monitoring Officer of the authority by a Member, grant a dispensation 
 relieving the Member from either or both of the restrictions in paragraph 

Page 28



c210504 – A&S Reference 

 12(1)(a) (restrictions on participating in discussions and in voting), in 
 cases described in the dispensation. 

 
(2)  A dispensation may be granted only if, after having had regard to all 

relevant circumstances, the Monitoring Officer – 
 

(a)  considers that without the dispensation the number of persons 
prohibited by paragraph 12 from participating in any particular 
business would be so great a proportion of the body transacting 
the business as to impede the transaction of the business; 

 
(b)  considers that without the dispensation the representation of 

different political groups on the body transacting any particular 
business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any 
vote relating to the business; 

 
(c)  considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of 

persons living in the authority’s area; 
 

(d)  if it is an authority to which Part 1A of the Local Government Act 
2000 applies and is operating executive arrangements, 
considers that without the dispensation each Member of the 
authority’s executive would be prohibited by paragraph 12 from 
participating in any particular business to be transacted by the 
authority’s executive; or 

 
(e)  considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

 
(3)  A dispensation must specify the period for which it has effect, and the 

period specified may not exceed four years. 
 

(4)  Paragraph 12 does not apply in relation to anything done for the 
purpose of deciding whether to grant a dispensation under this 
paragraph. 

 
  

Page 29



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Appendix 1 
 

The 7 Principles of Public Life 
 
The principles of public life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder.  
This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally 
and locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local 
government, the police, courts and probation services, NDPBs, and in the health, 
education, social and care services.  All public office-holders are both servants of 
the public and stewards of public resources.  The principles also have application 
to all those in other sectors delivering public services. 
 

Selflessness 
 
1. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 

Integrity 
 
2. Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 

people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their 
work.  They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.  They must 
declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 

 
Objectivity 

 
3. Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on 

merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 

Accountability 
 
4. Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and 

actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 
 

Openness 
 
5. Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and 

transparent manner.  Information should not be withheld from the public 
unless there are clear and lawful reasons for doing so. 

 
Honesty 

 
6. Holders of public office should be truthful. 
 

Leadership 
 
7. Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour.  

They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be 
willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

  

Page 30



c210504 – A&S Reference 

Appendix B 
Risk Management Policy  
 
Introduction 
  
1.  This is the Rother District Council Risk Management Policy. It sets out the 

Council’s approach to Risk Management and how this will be monitored. It 
also outlines the principles of operation for risk.  

  
Definition 
   
2.  Risk management is the way that the Council responds to uncertainty in the 

external environment. Risk management allows the Council to:   
  

a. Identify risks in the context of Corporate objectives, including potential 
opportunities.   

b.  Assess risks to determine the likelihood and impact of each risk.   
c.  Determine the response to each risk individually.   
d.  Develop the necessary actions, controls and processes to implement the 

chosen response to each risk.   
e. Communicate the approach to risk management and the results of risk 

management activity.   
f.  Deal with each risk – either avoid, reduce, share or accept it.  
g.  Exercise the contingencies for managing risks.  

  
Risk Culture  
 
3.  A strong business wide risk culture is an important aspect of strong corporate 

governance. Risk Culture is the shared values, attitudes and practices that 
characterise how the Council considers risk on a day to day basis.   

  
a.  Awareness of risks faced by the Council.  
b.  Understanding of the business and the relevance of risk.  
c.  Clear ownership of risks.  
d. Clearly defined responsibilities for risk management activity.  
e.  Effective monitoring and reporting of the effectiveness of risk.   

  
4.  Whilst the Council should not be risk averse, the principles contained within 

this policy ensure that the Council strikes the right balance in its approach to 
business opportunity and risk management.  

  
5.  It is also important to set a boundary between risk management and 

operational management activity, which by its nature has an element of risk 
management. Generally the boundary adopted by this policy is where the 
impact becomes Corporate, whilst also acknowledging that there are service 
based activities whose impact should be considered a Corporate Risk.  

  
Risk Framework  
 
6.  The Council’s Risk framework is based on a number of elements, closely 

linked to the Council’s Business Continuity Planning process and also the 
Corporate Plan project management programme. The principle here to enable 
a live, easy to use framework that emphasises a flexible response based on 
experience from exercises. The elements are:  

Page 31



c210504 – A&S Reference 

  a. The Council’s Risk Management Policy.  
b.  Risk Matrix.  
c.  Established contingencies.  
d.  Corporate Project Management.  
e.  Business Continuity Plan.  

  
7.  The Council works on the basis of a 3 Tier framework of Risk:  
  

a.  Corporate Risks – risk that potentially impact on the whole operation of the 
Council. 

b.  Service Based Risks - risk that have a specific impact on a Service within 
the Council, without necessarily impacting on all our operations.  

c.  Project Based Risks - risk that are around key Corporate Plan Projects. As 
such these form part of the project management plan for the project.  

   
8.  This is a live framework and will be subject to regular change, in line with the 

business operations of the Council.  
  
Responsibility & Reporting  
  
9.  The responsibilities within this policy are outlined below:  
  

Council   
Any policy decisions on Risk are fed through to full Council, via the Audit and 
Standards Committee. Policy updates will be brought forward as required.    

  
Audit and Standards Committee  
The Audit and Standards Committee is the body responsible for monitoring 
the Council’s strategic risk management. An annual report will be considered 
by the Audit and Standards committee on our progress with Risk 
Management.   

  
Corporate Management Team  
Corporate Management Team has the following responsibilities:   

  
a.  Implementing the risk management policy.   
b.  Reviewing the management of strategic risk.   
c.  Monitoring the effectiveness of the controls developed to implement the 

chosen risk response.   
d. Integrating risk management into project and service planning process.   
e.  Ensuring that appropriate training is put in place for appropriate officers 

and that it is reflected in the Member Development programme.  
  

This will be formally considered on a 6 monthly basis, and whenever specific 
risk issues arise. The Assistant Director, Resources will lead on this for 
Rother, reporting to CMT.  

  
Heads of Service and Corporate Core 
Heads of Service and senior managers within the Corporate Core are key in 
maintaining our ability to manage risk. They are responsible for working with 
CMT to maintain the corporate risk matrix. They also maintain a Service 
based risk register (as required). Finally they ensure projects based within 
their Service area have risk management in place. 

 

Page 32



c210504 - MDTG Annual Report 

Rother District Council 
 

Report to - Council 

Date  - 4 May 2021 

Report of the - Member Development Task Group 
 

Subject - Annual Report of the Member Training and Development 
 Task Group 

 

 

Recommendation:  It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted.  
 

 
Introduction   
 
1. The Member Development Task Group (MDTG) provides a structured and on-

going Member-led approach to Member training and development.  This 
report provides Members with an annual update on Member Training and 
Development issues since May 2020.  

 
2. The Membership of the MDTG is usually fixed for the life of the Council (as far 

as possible) but one change was made in the last year with Councillor 
Prochak being appointed as the Member Training and Development 
Champion and Councillor Brewerton leaving the Group.  The current 
membership is confirmed as: Councillors Prochak (Member Training and 
Development Champion and Chairman), Bayliss (Labour Group Leader), Mrs 
Cook (newly elected 2019 Member), Dixon (Liberal Democrat Group Leader), 
Oliver (Independent Group Leader), Stevens (Conservative Group 
representative) and Timpe (newly elected 2019 Member).  All Group Leaders 
are able to send a substitute if they are unable to attend and Councillor Gray 
has attended twice during the past year as a substitute for Councillor Dixon. 
 

3. All Members are encouraged to contact their respective representatives if they 
have any training and development issues to be brought to the attention of the 
MDTG. 
 

4. The MDTG has met three times since the last annual report.  The minutes 
arising from the meetings are highlighted within the Members’ Bulletin e-zine 
and published on the website (extranet). 
 

5. Whilst the initial intensive training requirement for the newly elected Council 
has passed, there has remained a steady provision of Member Training and 
Development opportunities for Members during the past 12 months.  This year 
has been a particularly challenging year as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic and the move to holding all formal Council meetings on-line via MS 
Teams.  This required an urgent need for training and development and the 
Council’s Transformation and Democratic Services Teams have supported 
both Members and fellow officers in this regard.  
 

6. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic the majority of training sessions have 
also been delivered on-line via MS Teams.  Whilst there have been benefits to 
receiving training on-line, the networking opportunity that face to face 
sessions bring has been lost and facilitators are now being requested to 

Page 33

Agenda Item 24



c210504 - MDTG Annual Report 

introduce an “ice-breaker” into the beginning of training and development 
sessions, where appropriate.   
 

Member Training Programme 2020 
 
7. This past year has seen the continuation of the Member Training Programme 

identified through the initial and revised Training Needs Analysis (TNA) 
undertaken in June 2019 and September/October 2020 respectively.  As well 
as concentrating on essential service-related training and personal skills, 
more wide-ranging development / learning opportunities have included 
Universal Credit, Neighbourhood Planning, Dealing with the Media, Effective 
Meeting Skills, Human Trafficking and Modern Slavery, Environmental Health 
Update on COVID-19 and BREXIT, Chairing Skills, Community Engagement 
and Commercial Property Investment training. 
 

8. A full list of the development activities that have been offered to Members 
during the last year is available on the Members’ Area of the website as well 
as the feedback received on these sessions, where appropriate. 
 

9. Where possible and appropriate, relevant training and development 
opportunities have been offered to the town and parish councils, particularly 
with regard to planning matters.   

 
Finance 
 
10. The Council continues to allocate both human and financial resources to 

Member Development and currently has a Member training budget of £15,000 
per annum.  A higher expenditure is usual in years 1 and 2 with less activity in 
years 3 and 4.  Any underspent budget is not automatically carried forward 
year-on-year. 
 

11. In order to ensure value for money (vfm) it is essential that once Members 
have requested a place on a training session that the date is reserved, 
particularly where an external consultant or other additional expenditure such 
as transport is involved; at the request of the MDTG, the cost of training per 
head is now advised to Members at the time that places are offered.  

 

12. There have been occasions during the last year where the overall vfm has 
been compromised when the number Members have reduced due to last 
minute drop outs – it is acknowledged that there are occasions (sickness, 
family crisis etc.) which are unavoidable.     
 

Member Training and Development Attendance Statistics  
 

13. The MDTG continues to receive an update at each meeting on the number of 
training events each Member has attended since the elections in May 2019; 
this information is primarily for use by the Group Leaders and the most recent 
update is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
 

14. Training and Development is not compulsory, except for those Members 
serving on the Council’s regulatory committees; each Member has very 
specific training and development requirements, based on their own personal 
circumstances which will include experience, role (both internal and external 
to Rother), interests, availability and length of service as a Councillor. 

Page 34



c210504 - MDTG Annual Report 

South East Charter for Member Development 
 
15. The Council was awarded the South East Employer’s (SEE) Charter for 

Elected Member Development for a fourth time in March 2018.  The Council 
has successfully retained the Charter continuously for over 10 years.  A 
successful 18 month review took place in October 2019. 
 

16. However, in February 2020, full Council agreed that the Council did not 
recommit to renewing the SEE Charter when it expires in March 2021.  
Cabinet’s recommendation to Council acknowledged that whilst the high level 
training and development offer at the Council had been as a result of the 
introduction of the Charter back in 2007 there was now a culture of continuous 
learning and development and the renewal fee (£2,000) could be put to better 
use. 
 

17. The retention of the Charter was not the key driver for the current standard 
and level of training and support provided to Members; Members are 
reassured that this will be maintained, by the continuation and stewardship of 
this Group.  

 

Conclusions  
 
18. This civic year has been a challenging time for Member Training and 

Development – the move to on-line meetings and training in the wake of the 
COVID-19 pandemic has been embraced by officers, Members and 
professional trainers alike and I would like to thank all those involved. With 
expert officer support, our meetings are now professional and proficient, and I 
congratulate all who have risen to this challenge of our new way of working.  
 

19. After the fairly intensive training in the early days of the new council, there 
is still the continued delivery of identified training needs, the mandatory 
annual training for licensing and planning, together with any other service 
specific training / development requirements as a result of service changes / 
new legislation etc.  I would like to thank Democratic Services staff for 
supporting this ongoing programme so well, in particular Julie Hollands.   
 

20. I am pleased to take this opportunity also to thank formally my fellow Task 
Group Members, Councillors Bayliss, Mrs Cook, Dixon, Gray, Oliver, Stevens 
and Timpe for the contribution they have made over the past year and the 
officer support that is provided both directly by Democratic Services, the 
Transformation Team and indirectly through all staff involved in guiding and 
providing assistance to Members in a number of ways.   

 
 
Councillor Prochak 
Chairman of the Member Development Task Group 
 
  

Page 35



c210504 - MDTG Annual Report 

Appendix 1 
 

 
MEMBER TRAINING ATTENDANCE STATISTICS 2019-2023 
 

 
1. Detailed below is a summary of the number of training events that each 

individual Member has attended since election in 2019 to date.   
 

COUNCILLOR 
TRAINING 
EVENTS 

COUNCILLOR 
TRAINING 
EVENTS 

John Barnes 21  (1) Polly Gray 47  (3) 

Mary Barnes 27  (1) Kathy Harmer 31  (2) 

Christine Bayliss 14  (3) Sally-Ann Hart 9  

Roger Bird 4  Ashan Jeeawon 13  (1) 

Jay Brewerton 28  (2) Jonathan Johnson 8  

Graham Browne 7  (1) Eleanor Kirby-Green 5  

Terry Byrne 25  (2) Lynn Langlands 44  (1) 

James Carroll 4  (2) Chris Madeley 35  (1) 

Charles Clark 1  Carl Maynard 1  

Sam Coleman 35  (1) Andrew Mier 45  (2) 

Vikki Cook 28  (1) Martin Mooney 5  (1) 

Paul Courtel 49  (1) Howard Norton 19  (1) 

Gary Curtis 13  Doug Oliver 35  (3) 

Kevin Dixon 14  (2) Paul Osborne 2  

Brian Drayson 40  (1) Sue Prochak 42  (1) 

Deirdre Earl-Williams 13  Gennette Stevens 31  (1) 

Sarah Errington 40  (2) Richard Thomas 31  

Kathryn Field 14  (1) Hazel Timpe 46  (2) 

Tony Ganly 16  (3) Jonathan Vine-Hall 28  (3) 

 
KEY 

 None attended since last MDTG meeting 

 + (number) Attended since last MDTG meeting 

 
 

Page 36


	Agenda
	19 To consider and approve as detailed in Appendix 1:
	21 To receive the report of the Cabinet on matters for determination by the full Council at its meetings held on 29 March (there were no recommendations to Council arising from the meetings held on 1 March and 8 April 2021), as under:
	22 To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service, in accordance with paragraph 17a of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules and paragraph 4 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules, of any urgent decisions taken at Cabinet meetings held on 1 and 29 March and 8 April 2021.
	23 To receive the report of the Audit and Standards Committee on the following matters for determination by the full Council considered at its meeting held on 22 March 2021, as under:
	24 To receive the Annual Report of the Member Development Task Group

